
Meeting Minutes
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, April 2nd, 2019.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Thomas A. Bianchi, Chairman presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




Loretta Taylor, Chairperson (absent)



Steven Kessler, Board Member 



Robert Foley, Board Member 
Jeff Rothfeder, Board Member 
Peter Daly, Board Member 

George Kimmerling, Board Member 

ALSO PRESENT:




Michael Cunningham, Town Attorney 




Michael Preziosi, Deputy Director, DOTS



Chris Kehoe, Deputy Director for Planning


*



*



*
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA
Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated there are no changes to the agenda this evening.


*



*



*
ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF MARCH 5, 2019
Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked can I have a motion to adopt the minutes of the March 5th meeting. 
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated thank you.



*



*



*
CORRESPONDENCE:

PB 5-95    a.
Letter dated March 18, 2019 from David Steinmetz, Esq. requesting Planning Board approval for the clarification/modification of permitted recreational uses for the existing tennis bubble at the Premier Athletic Club located at 2127 Albany Post Rd.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated good evening Mr. Chairman, members of the board. David Steinmetz from the law firm of Zarin & Steinmetz here representing Premier Athletic Club. Along with me this evening Val Santucci, the owner and operator of Premier, along with Valerie Schemmer, the general manager of Premier. Members of the board, I wrote the letter, as you’re all aware, because the town had received a letter, a communication from a neighboring property owner. My client had a very brief conversation with staff. Staff had indicated that we should write a letter to your board just to make sure we were seeking clarification of the use that there was no disconnect between the club, which obviously has been a wonderful longstanding member of the community, and employer in the community, a recreational facility in the community, and certainly wants to be nothing other than a very good neighbor in the community. Having said that, we took a couple of steps back. First of all, I looked at some resolutions of this board from 1995 and 1997. I also looked at a Zoning Board of Appeals resolution. Mr. Bianchi and I, I think were both involved in twenty one years ago in 1998. Tom, neither one of us has aged, it’s okay. 
Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated thank you.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated the long and short of the resolutions is that it’s quite clear the Town of Cortlandt has always acknowledged that Premier Athletic Club was a multipurpose, multiuse recreational facility for any number of variety of sports both indoor and outdoor and all ages. Having said that, Mr. Santucci, Ms. Schemmer are concerned when any kind of question is raised by a neighbor so the first thing they did after reaching out to me and having me write this letter, they retained a noise consultant. A professional noise consultant came out to the property. Readings were taken on three different dates at our inside property line, not from the neighbor’s property line, certainly not from any of the neighbor’s homes. The report was just generated so I did not have a chance to submit it to your board in advance of tonight, but the report indicates that we are in compliance with the town’s noise ordinance. Having said all of that, we’re here. We’re here cooperatively. We’re here after a discussion with staff. In my opinion, Mr. Chairman, this is not the place for this to be discussed and for any kind of determination to be made. This is an issue of enforcement of the town’s code. So if the town wants to review its code and if the town wants to review its prior approvals, we’re happy to work through that with staff. Your board is, Mr. Chairman, you and the board know, you’re not an enforcement agency. The Planning Board is not here to enforce any aspect of the code. So we’re here because Mr. Santucci would never not appear when the town asked him to appear. I wrote the letter because we would never not write the letter when we were asked to do so. However, procedurally I’m really not clear on why we’re here other than having an open dialogue. We’re happy to do that but procedurally and jurisdictionally I really think I need to take this up with Martin, Ken and staff. I want to share with them the noise report because they’re the ones that should be evaluating whether or not there’s any kind of noise issue. If there is, we’ll deal with it as they see fit. There is no noise issue. Every activity that’s occurring in that tennis bubble and on that property is permitted under the resolution that Mr. Bianchi and six other members of the Zoning Board signed off on twenty one years ago. Again, I’m happy to answer any questions. I am aware that your board at the work session that I was unable to attend talked about process and the possibility of some kind of modified approval or maybe even a public hearing. Again, Mr. Chairman with all due respect to the board, I don’t know what gives you authority to conduct any kind of public hearing. It’s a business operating in the town. It’s a business that’s lawfully operating in the town under your resolutions and if there’s a question about neighborly coexistence, let’s deal with it. I want to make it totally clear on behalf of Premier Health Club, Athletic Club and the Santuccis, they have absolutely, unequivocally no desire to not coexist peacefully with their neighbors. In fact, they want to coexist as they have for 30 some odd years – 40 years. He’s not dating himself. I’m here to answer any questions. I’d like this to be referred back to staff for review. 
Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated I think at our work session last week we looked at the previous resolution that you referred to and I think we agreed that the current request is for substantial change to the types of activities that you had previously, or Mr. Santucci had previously requested. And I think that was an area of concern for the board. I’d like to open it up to the board and maybe they’d like to comment on. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so David, you referenced the Zoning Board of Appeals decision and their approval you’re saying approved all the current uses. Is that what you’re saying?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded the prior resolutions of the Planning Board from ’95 and ’97 approved uses and then the Zoning Board resolution which was in connection with the construction of the pool, cabana, playground, bocce and the bubble which had been built in 1995. This was specifically, and I’m sure you’ve got it Steve, it says: “the improvements constructed in the north westerly portion of the property and the use of the property, the entire property, for the operation of a summer sports program for children are in conformity with the town’s previously issued site plan approval.” Any kind of recreational activity associated with children and summer sports programs, it doesn’t say summer sports program where you’re only allowed to play kickball but no other sport. It’s a summer sports program, every sport…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked but we’re talking about the bubble specifically I think at this point, right?

Mr. David Steinmetz stated the answer to that in all fairness, we believe that’s the case but noise could be coming from theoretically anywhere on the site. Recreational activity is allowed anywhere on the site.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked but the bubble says “for winter use of tennis courts”, correct, in the ZBA decision?

Mr. David Steinmetz asked which ZBA decision?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded the one from….

Mr. David Steinmetz stated because we may not all have the same resolutions. I had asked Chris to send me everything he could.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m looking at case 22-95 dated April 19th, 1995.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated so I don’t have that. I have the ones that came after that. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked secondly, so you said the list of uses and the only place I find the list of uses is on the plan.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I’m sure there were some uses listed, yes. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated there was quite a listing of uses. I guess the question is: people are complaining about noise, specifically I think they’re complaining about soccer being played there. 

Mr. David Steinmetz asked is there any question that soccer is permitted to occur on this property?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated well it’s not listed. It’s not one of the uses listed in the approval.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated because you’re looking at the older approvals. In 1998 the Zoning Board of Appeals of the Town of Cortlandt expressly permitted a summer sports program for children. It’s not limited by use. And as I said Steve…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so your assertion is that that’s allowed anywhere on the property including within the bubble.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated absolutely, unequivocally, just like I don’t believe today you’re regulating whether you can only sell beets in aisle 7 in Stop ‘and’ Shop. It’s a use that can occur on the property. So you don’t regulate precisely where the use occurs on the site. The use can occur on the property. My client is allowed to use the property as a health and recreational facility and went through probably five different resolutions of the town to get to the point where it has been literally for the last twenty one years.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked again, your assertion is that in all these intervening years there have been no change of use on the property whatsoever?

Mr. David Steinmetz stated let’s discuss what you mean by change of use. My definition of use is the use is as a health recreational and fitness club; no change of use. If you’re going to ask me whether we added red beets in addition to yellow beets, we can discuss that.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked if you wanted to put in a shooting range, you can do that?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I don’t think you can do – shooting…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated recreational, we’re not talking practice.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it’s a great question. You could probably could have it indoor if it’s permissible under state law.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I guess you’re doing this expansive – you’re being very expansive in what you say is a recreational use and I don’t know if I necessarily agree with that.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s an issue for the enforcement body, not for the Planning Board of the Town of Cortlandt.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated or it’s an application for a change of use to the site plan. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated if there is a need for a change of use, yes; if there is no need for a change of use, no. What I don’t understand is when I wrote the letter it was before I received everything from the town. Though I was involved in some of the – I got this bocce court approved in 1995. I don’t remember that but I apparently was involved in that twenty four years ago. Once we reviewed all the materials, the latest document appears to be the town Zoning Board of Appeals signing off on a children’s summer sports program, not limited to any portion of the property. So if children are allowed to recreate on this site during the summertime, children are allowed to recreate on this site any other time of year. I completely acknowledge that we have to comply with the noise ordinance but I don’t think, with all due respect, that we’re here talking about soccer and whether it’s one team or three teams any more than you could regulate any other internal business operation of any other business in the town. It’s a standard doctrine of zoning law that you get to regulate use not the business operation.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but David, you specifically came here and asked for tennis bubble to be used in the winter and that is not what it’s being used for today. That’s what the approvals were.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated if I can interject for a second. When the town office of Code Enforcement received the initial complaint, we had checked the previously approved site plan and it listed a number of allowed and permitted uses for the sports bubble and for ancillary uses along the site. Specifically in resolution #58-95 of the Planning Board, condition 2 says “add a note on the site plan that noise from the tennis bubble enclosure shall not exceed the standards contained in section 197-8” which is the noise ordinance of the Town of Cortlandt. When we saw and observed that there was additional uses being used within the bubble not on the approved site plan, the request was made to Mr. Santucci to make application under correspondence to the Planning Board to indicate his intended uses of the sports bubble and surrounding area and to prove to us that there’s no noise violation. We felt, under correspondence would be the appropriate means for the Planning Board to evaluate any potential and proposed use of the sports bubble not originally contemplated. Our code and Code Enforcement or my opinion that were debating recreational use. I think what we want to do is to clarify and create a new standard that he’s allowed to use recreational uses within the sports bubble provided that the noise ordinance is not violated.
Mr. David Steinmetz stated we don’t disagree with that.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated that’s why he’s back in front of the board to consider modifying past approvals to allow the sports dome, the sports bubble to be used for a multitude of recreational uses.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked is that a change of use or is…

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded we’re expanding the use, so we’re considering it as a change of use, yes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think it’s analogous to a restaurant going to another restaurant. That’s not a change of use but staff would make a determination if they’re providing outdoor seating, or if they’re adding seating, or if they’re putting another egress. Sometimes we would say, well that’s different enough that it needs to go back to the Planning Board. It’s not a change of use but we want you to take a look at it.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated so what we’re really asking as Chris was saying is for you to evaluate the potential recreational uses what’s been used currently ongoing on the site, any potential or future recreational uses that are being contemplated. We’re loosening the reign so-to-speak as far as what recreational is considered on site.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated so following what both Mr. Preziosi and Mr. Kehoe have said; Mr. Kehoe said, it’s not really a change of use but we wanted you to take a look at it. I willingly wrote a letter to you letting you take a look at it. Let’s not say anything other than what the facts are. March 18th I wrote a letter to the Planning Board because I was asked to do that and we’re here. We didn’t object to coming. In the ensuing two weeks as its become a little clearer of what’s going on here, this is an enforcement question. We’ve hired a noise consultant. We meet the town’s noise ordinance. We’re going to submit that data. I don’t think there’s a need for there to be a process in front of the Planning Board for any kind of modification of the approvals. I’m delighted, if the record is clarified in some fashion as I think the Director of DOTS has just done by acknowledging that folks this site has clearly been modified over the years in terms of different buildings, different areas of the site have had things added: tennis courts were added, basketball was added, bocce was added. It’s always been a health and recreational facility. We’re not adding any more improvements to the site. so if I was here saying, Steve just trying to follow one of your earlier questions, if I was trying to construct a new soccer field on this property to still do everything that I think I’m allowed to do, I would have to come here for a modified site plan approval because I’m changing the physical contents of the site. I’m not changing anything. We’re clarifying what’s going on as you should certainly – the entire town should be aware but we’re really trying to make sure that there’s no noise issue. Respectfully on behalf of VS and Mr. Santucci, I’m not voluntarily consenting to a site plan modification. I am absolutely voluntarily consenting to filing with staff and the board wherever you want it, a noise analysis and allowing whomever you decide to review it. I believe it should be reviewed by your staff not by the Planning Board. I’m not aware of you guys ever conducting enforcement review at the Planning Board level but that’s up to you and staff. Jurisdictionally, that’s in front of Martin and Ken.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked can I just jump in here for a minute? So as I understand it, the tennis bubbles were permitted to cover the tennis courts during the winter.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated originally.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated and then subsequently they were approved for summer recreation programs for children.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated correct.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated so it is neither summer so there shouldn’t be any children running around in there right now. Is that right? If it’s a summer program, clearly it’s not summer yet.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated so while I acknowledge it says the operation of summer sports program for children I don’t think the government has the right to say, you can do something on your property only this time of year and in fairness, for twenty one years there have been activities happening on this property well beyond the summertime involving children. So if the Planning Board tonight is announcing that we have to tell children they can’t come to Premier Athletic Club. I just can’t believe intellectually that’s the conversation we’re having.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated no, certainly we do permit things on a seasonal basis whether you’re a Home Depot, so that does happen, but your letter does say that the letter constitutes your formal request to be placed on the agenda for clarification or modification of the existing approval. So the idea that we’re somehow coming at this from some mad power grab against the Code Enforcement people it’s silly. You wrote to us to ask things specifically to be on the agenda so that we could consider this and that’s what we’re doing. It seems to me that your request that we should simply permit pretty much all other recreational or fitness uses is really broad so I don’t understand how you can at one point this is really a Code Enforcement situation and on the other hand be asking us in a formal request to approve pretty much everything you want to do there.
Mr. David Steinmetz stated great question. So I’m going to go back to the beginning. I get a phone call from Val Santucci. I haven’t worked on Premier Athletic Club in twenty one years. It’s been operating in the town for twenty one years. He tells me that something went up. There was a letter written. Michael asked that we write a letter and come before your board. I did that immediately, immediately because I want to be on this agenda. I didn’t want there to be any confusion about the operation of the site let alone its operations going into the summer when more kids come. In the ensuing two weeks, two more letters have been written. You all know that. I know that. It’s quite clear that the letters are being written not because kids are playing soccer or they’re playing lacrosse or suddenly there’s field hockey. The letters are being written because of a noise issue. It’s not a use issue, it’s a noise issue. It’s not an issue about physical location because the letters all acknowledge that the bubbles have been used for twenty one years. The letters do not relate specifically to use. The letters relate to noise. So despite the fact that I wrote my letter and you see my letter says: “clarification/modification” because I did not know Mr. Kimmerling exactly why I was being asked to write the letter but when Val calls and says: “David, write the letter to Michael.” I did it.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but David, you can’t divorce noise from use. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated you’re right which is why…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you just said it’s not a use issue it’s a noise issue.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated but noise is the objective criteria so noise can be measured, use can’t be. If you’re sitting here trying to analyze this, you’re analyzing the noise being generated from the site. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated because of use.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I don’t care what it’s from.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I do. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated okay, so let us measure the noise.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you measured the noise from the adjacent property owners?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded correct. We hired WSP, a reputable major engineering firm here in the county. They sent out somebody on three occasions. I have noise data that is literally dated today. I would never hand up something and expect you to review it on the fly. The noise guy is telling us we fully comply. You have every right to analyze the noise data. The town has every right to analyze the noise data, whether you want to do it or Enforcement. Verbally I’m standing here modifying my letter. I don’t think you need to modify your approvals. Mr. Kimmerling, since I wrote the letter on March 15th, we literally dusted off one file box today that had materials from twenty one years ago. Today is the first time I saw that Tom and I were at the Zoning Board meeting in 1998. I forgot that Tom was even on the Zoning Board in 1998. So this resolution, which Chris you know you didn’t send me this resolution correct?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I sent you the same three things that I sent them.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated this one was the broadest articulation of all of them that I read. None of the resolutions, because they all predate Chris Kehoe writing them, none of the resolutions are magnificently written on a use-by-use basis. I’ve done several health club approvals. I’ve never seen a health club approval that goes into exactly what recreational activity one can do inside the health club. You can do Pilates but you can you can’t do yoga?
Mr. George Kimmerling stated I don’t think we’re talking about the uses inside the health club. You can lift weights or you can swim, or you can go on the elliptical which I don’t know that happens inside the bubble. We’re not talking about what generally what happens everywhere on the property. I guess I’m confused. If you don’t want to talk about uses, are you withdrawing your formal request that we clarify or modify the uses?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded if the town – no I’m trying to find out what you – I guess I’m really trying to find out what staff is looking for because again, we’re missing each other. I don’t think your board can summon people in here and discuss enforcement. We’re doing it but I don’t think you have the right to do that. 

Mr. George Kimmerling stated  we didn’t summon you certainly.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I was asked by staff to write a letter to come here.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we sort of summoned him.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated yes, and again, let the record reflect, Mr. Santucci didn’t object, he’s here as is the general manager of the club. 

Mr. George Kimmerling stated which is great.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but I think what one thing staff was saying is the approving resolution said it was a tennis bubble to seasonally cover the tennis courts. The bubble would be taken down, I believe you play outdoors. So then when we got the complaint we analyzed it and the website now talks about something, something soccer academy in the bubble. David’s raising a good point. The question is, do you consider that a change of use? It’s a change of activity. It’s something different going on the site than what you approved. 

Mr. George Kimmerling stated say there was a big Home Goods retailer and seasonally they wanted to have Christmas trees, but then they decided that they wanted to use this property for display and sales all year round. They had to come and they had to say: “I know we wanted Christmas trees part of year and then we would revert back to a parking lot but now we want to have Christmas trees and other stuff all year round so can we please do that?” I don’t see the difference.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s a different type of activity. That’s what I just said.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated that’s an adept analogy.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated but it’s also a seasonal use. You can do it sometimes. The bubble does come down in the summer?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded that’s why when we evaluated the use, we looked at the approved site plan, the approving resolutions and indicated that the sports bubble was to be used for tennis. The noise complaint came in. We’re viewing this as an expansion of the use of the site. To Chris’ example earlier in the conversation, if a restaurant is 30 seats and wants to double the size, they come back to the Planning Board for a modification to the site plan because the use is expanding. This is how we’re viewing this is the use of the sports bubble has expanded. We’re not here to say what’s going to be proposed for the use of the bubble. We want the applicant to let us know what he wants to use and the board can weigh in on that and consider those uses are acceptable under the town’s site plan approval process and whether or not they can maintain operations and activities within the noise ordinance.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated David’s position, sort of, is that these are all recreation uses, recreations permitted, then it’s not a change of use so I don’t really need your permission to do it, if I was paraphrasing.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that was a pretty good job Chris. Look, Chris is right and Valerie if I’m misspeaking you correct me. They don’t want to be uncooperative with the town by any means. I want to go back to what I said at the outset. They don’t want to be uncooperative with the neighbors but if today a recreational activity in 2019 is running around backwards and in 2022 it’s hopscotch, we don’t have to come back to the town government and ask for permission to do that. So if they’re having an off-site impact that’s improper and impactful there’s no question the government intercedes but you know if suddenly there’s a new product sold in a retailer they don’t come back in. And I want to just take Mr. Kimmerling’s example which is a good one I’m trying to deal with on the fly, if somebody is selling Christmas trees outside and they’re using an area and then some other time of the year they’re putting their lawnmowers out there, it’s outdoor display regardless of exactly what the product is. So here, it’s recreational activity inside a tennis bubble. I don’t think the government has the right to say: “you can only play tennis inside a tennis bubble” when your facility has clearly been signed off by the Zoning Board as a sports…
Mr. Steven Kessler stated but that’s what you came asking for though. That’s what I don’t understand. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated but Steve…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m not necessarily disagreeing with you but you came here and you said: “I want to enclose a tennis court with a bubble, seasonally.” Tennis. Bubble. Period. It wasn’t tennis and other health and recreational activities. It was tennis.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated at that time it was. That’s all he was – because that’s what he wrote on a piece of paper, agreed. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so come back with a change of use. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated but the use didn’t change.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you’re not playing tennis. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated so? I’m not trying to be difficult but I’m fascinated by your argument.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated the noise from hitting a ball across a net is a lot different than 22 people on a soccer field with parents screaming at the refs.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated but your ordinance says that I’m allowed to operate a summer sports program which is noisier than tennis.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and your approval said, here is the list of uses: tennis, racquetball, swimming, gymnasium, massage, tanning, the lockers, toilets, aerobics, nautilus, weights, lounge, restaurant, pro shop, offices, salon, exercise. Those were the lists of uses. That was on the site plan.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated so?

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated I think we’re going around in circles here and I think you clearly hear the board’s position on this is that the uses have changed. What I hear Mr. Preziosi and Mr. Kehoe saying is the same thing. You maybe heard it differently but I hear that it’s a change in the original use and from my viewpoint you can’t separate noise and you can’t separate use. In my mind in fact, the usage is more paramount than the noise because it’s from the use that the noise originates from. So if we clarify, as you requested, the permitted uses and define what recreational is better that’s I think the direction we need to go in.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but here’s the next thing, you could do that right now. You could simply say: “we hereby decree that these uses are okay.” Or I think what we talked about at the work session is you want to see the plan revised to add the note that the bubble is now going to be used for indoor sports recreation or something along those lines.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I just don’t think you can leave it open ended. I’m not saying you can think of every possible sport that’s going to be invented between now and whenever but I just don’t think if you want to put archery in there, that’s probably not a good idea.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated so if you want to clarify the approvals, I have no objection to the suggestion that you do it tonight. You want to do it. When I heard that your board at the work session was talking about a modified site plan approval, public hearings, none of that in my opinion, we don’t have to agree but I want you to be clear, I want to be clear, I don’t think jurisdictionally you can do that. You may choose to and then we’ll have to decide how to deal with that, but I’m looking to try to achieve what I think is a more intelligent compromise. We can talk about uses all you want. We’ve got to make sure the site is in compliance with your noise ordinance. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and you’re representing here tonight that the site plan is exactly the same as it was approved way back when.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated no I’m not saying that because I can’t tell you – I don’t remember Steve what you and I did in, and you and I did it together in 1995 or 1997.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I don’t remember what I did last week.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated neither do I so I have no recollection. Looking at this, I forgot I was involved in the bocce court. I read it and I remembered when Val called me and said, I remember him calling me twenty some odd years ago saying: we’re going to add outdoor bocce. Sure enough it’s in the resolutions. I forgot all about it. He never invited me to play bocce at the club you know.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it’s about the mechanics of the next step.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated exactly.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated if you want to hold a hearing because there are people who wrote the letters are in the audience tonight. They’re not going to be given an opportunity to speak if you don’t hold the public hearing unless you allow them to speak. And then whether you want the plan revised or not, but then the discussion would be, if you have a hearing based on the hearing, based on the noise analysis then you may want additional fencing put up or something like that, or landscaping put up. You’ve got to figure out mechanically what you want to happen next. What we talked about at the work session was the possibility of an amended site plan and the amendments to that site plan would simply say I guess: bubble to remain all year long. Uses in the bubble would be somewhat that as David has already listed in his letter. And then I think we also said given this conversation that we’re not sure exactly that it’s the same that was approved in 1997 to confirm that it’s no other uses are out there that were approved in 1997. I think the basketball, the bocce, all those things are on the plan.
Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated I think that’s the proper way to go on this. To amend the resolution, you need a site plan revision and you need to specify what is going to be said, what’s going to be taking place in that property. We do have letters from neighbors with an issue of noise. We haven’t seen, I don’t think we have seen a noise reports that you alluded to.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated no you haven’t.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated I think staff should look at that and we should proceed with just an amended site plan and a public hearing is probably something that is appropriate. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I would respectfully suggest that your board, before you make a determination of that nature that you have an opportunity to confer with staff and confer with your Enforcement officials. You may still decide you want to have a modified site plan approval, you may not. You may get an opinion from your Code Enforcement officials that there is no improper change of use. If there is no improper change in use then the only issue is noise and we’re going to submit a noise study and it’s going to be reviewed. If you decide to proceed beyond that you can take the proper steps and you can certainly do that. I provided you with the list of uses because we wanted to be clear with you what was going on inside the bubble. Nobody’s representing – Mr. Santucci just came over to me and said: operationally we’re not saying that roller skating, basketball, lacrosse, squash, hockey, paddle tennis, ping pong, bowling, racquetball, soccer and other general sports and recreational activities are all going to continue inside the bubble. Some may leave, something going on elsewhere in the club could potentially come inside the bubble. If you end up rewriting your resolutions, we’re going to have to make sure that it acknowledges that whatever a fitness club is it can occur anywhere on the site. I’m trying to come up with good analogies because I think you guys don’t realize you’re stretching beyond where you ought to be. If a retailer in the Town of Cortlandt suddenly starts selling a new product, something different from what it was generating elsewhere in its store, the next round of Beanie babies and lots of people come to that retailer, well there’s a change. Something’s going on. There’s a lot more people coming here. There’s more cars all of a sudden. There’s a demand being created because they’re selling beanie babies and he was just doing soccer in a tennis bubble. Does that give you the authority to call somebody before the Planning Board? No, that gives you the authority to have your Code Enforcement people determine whether or not something improper has happened on the site. Our analogy is we’re just doing something else inside the tennis bubble that you don’t regulate exactly what those activities are. I concede somebody put on a plan enclosed two tennis courts. I get it. I understand that. For twenty one years your Code Enforcement people are very well aware, and Michael read it. There’s apparently another plan that lists a whole bunch of other uses. I can’t tell you how the plan’s evolved over the years but nobody’s hidden the fact that the bubble and the bubble courts have been used for soccer. They’ve been used for indoor lacrosse practice. I don’t know what else to say. I think you’re going down the wrong path if you’re now declaring that the Town of Cortlandt Planning Board can determine if something changed in terms of a product, a service, a use, that’s not the board’s role.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked just a clarification, the bubble was approved on a seasonal basis to be taken down and put up again?
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think it was called a seasonal tennis bubble. I don’t think it got down to saying…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated there’s no requirement that it must come down at a certain time of year.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated so it was called seasonal but that had no meaning. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I don’t think we said it can only be up from November 1st to April 1st.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated just a clarification because there’s been some discussion about what I said earlier in the conversation, ultimately the threshold question was that when this sports bubble and the tennis courts were contemplated by the original approving authority, the original board, the noise that was generated from those facilities were taken into account and the specific uses that were listed on those plans is what predicated the approval and the location of the sports bubble and tennis courts in that location. What I was saying is additional uses have been indicated to be occurring on site which changes the use of the facility which is increasing or modifying the noise. What I’m recommending at this juncture after everyone’s discussion, is let us review the noise study that was prepared. I have not seen it. We have not discussed anything with WSP, the consultant that was hired by the applicant. We need to make sure that the noise receptors were placed in the proper location, closest nearest to the property line to the individual making the complaint, that they were set for a sufficient period of time to capture the potential uses within the site. So hopefully it was set during a soccer tournament, during an outdoor use of the facility. And once we evaluate that I would recommend we make a determination whether or not we feel there has been an expansion or change of use and bring it back to the board to make a formal decision.
Mr. David Steinmetz stated that is the appropriate process to go through. I’m going to…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated but you’re making your determination totally on the noise ordinance?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded no. I think we have a two-step process. The first is to review the noise study. We have not seen it yet. The second is to go out and do a comprehensive site inspection, observe the uses that are occurring on site to make sure there hasn’t been a substantial change to the use of the property which would necessitate a site plan amendment. That would satisfy both concerns of the board.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked but how could you tell that? You go out there…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated we have an approved site plan. That’s what should be out there.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s why I think we’re here because the approved site plan says it’s a tennis bubble.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated right, so they’re playing something else does that mean that you’re going to come back and say it’s a change of use?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded we have to do a little bit more research into this. The original reason why I recommended the letter and the correspondence to the board was, in my opinion, the site plan had specific uses listed and any expansion of those uses should have been approved by the Planning Board throughout the review process.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Mr. Santucci made a suggestion that you hear one thing just to help the analysis. In fairness to him, when he got the health club approved in 1972, soccer wasn’t as big in the town and nobody played indoor soccer inside health clubs. When he got the facility approved in 1972 nobody went rollerblading health clubs. In fact, rollerblading didn’t exist in 1972. You should know that those activities occur inside the main building at Premier Health Club. There’s indoor soccer, there’s rollerblading. Should we also be here tonight asking for a modification of the original building approvals that allowed it to be constructed as a health club? It’s the same issue. It’s a sports and recreational fitness club…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated but if the new use changes the conditions around or the way people in the area are perceiving it or their quality of life, there may need to be a discussion about it. I mean, I realize you’re bringing up the legal issue of jurisdiction over this and all that, but you know as Mr. Kimmerling was saying when Home Depot wants to change something in their outdoor display, we want them to come before us and tell us because we want to be able to weigh in on that. 

Mr. David Steinmetz asked change the product or change the location?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated no put a new product outside let’s say.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I don’t represent Home Depot obviously.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated if they’re putting trees but they want to put plants at a different time. I think what we’re concerned about is the community, the quality of life in the neighborhood. And so just to say I’ve got a tennis court now I can do whatever sport comes along, whatever extreme weird sport comes along because life is changing. That doesn’t make sense to me, that we don’t have the right to weigh in on that. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I just want to say it again if you read through the resolution #58 of 1995, the original approval. Condition #2 says: “note on the site plan that noise from the tennis bubble enclosure shall not exceed the standards contained in section 197-8” which is the noise ordinance of the town code. I think the intent of the approved bubble, again was, be located not to impact the adjacent properties due to noise. Now that we are increasing and changing the uses with different recreational activities which have led to the noise complaint, we have not received the noise complaint for changes of use within the main building, it’s been contained. But now we are receiving complaints from the adjacent properties for use of the sports bubble for uses not intended or not originally contemplated. So ultimately, like I said, it’s a two-step process. Let us do a site inspection and review the noise ordinance. We’ll bring this back to the board and we’ll make a proper recommendation, so-to-speak, or a proper referral for the board to evaluate the intended uses.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I’m not opposed to that. All I’m saying is that I don’t think it’s just the noise ordinance, in my opinion, and so it’s also what your intended use is and, as Steve was saying before, how that noise is perceived in the community…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated and that’s the point I’m trying to make, the original intent of the approval, the bubble, was not to violate the noise ordinance. Now that we are violating the noise ordinance, that needs to be looked at. I’m looking at it as a violation of the approved site plan because noise is being violated as far – that’s why the original request was made for the Planning Board to review the application and for us to confirm that there isn’t an issue with noise persisting on the site for whatever the intended uses of the sports bubble may be.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated so if the board agrees, let’s do what Michael has suggested and refer it back to him and bring it up for discussion next month.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Mr. Chairman I move that we refer this back for staff to review the applicant’s noise study as well as have people go out and review the current state of the site to see if it’s consistent with the original site plan approval.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Mr. Kessler, I’m going to return your copy of the resolution unless you have extras there. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you can keep it.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated and all I would ask is that staff and the applicant exchange – because there are resolution numbers that we do not appear to have.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated can you provide us with the noise analysis?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded and we will provide you with the noise study and we appreciate your time and patience tonight.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated thank you.

PB 13-05    b.
Letter dated March 18, 2019 from Brad Schwartz requesting the 11th and 12th 90-day time extensions of Final Plat approval for the Mill Court Crossing Subdivision located at the south end of Mill Court.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked is there anyone here to speak to that correspondence?
Mr. David Steinmetz stated good evening Mr. Chairman. My partner Brad Schwartz did write the letter that you have before you. We have nothing further to add to that. 

Mr. Peter Daly stated Mr. Chair I move that we adopt resolution 9-19.

Seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question, I know we discussed it a little at the work session. Is there anything else you can tell us reference other than your letter, reference the continued request for extension?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I know that our client is evaluating a number of different options but Mr. Foley at this point we want to keep the approvals alive. There’s no reason not to do so. You’ll be the first to know if there’s a modification or a change.

Mr. Robert Foley asked a change meaning it may not be a housing development?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded or something associated with the housing development could change.

Mr. Robert Foley stated okay thank you.

With all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated thank you all.
Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated have a good evening.



*



*



*
RESOLUTION:

PB 2018-26  a.
Application of  New York SMSA Limited Partnership, d/b/a Verizon Wireless, for the property of the Cortlandt Engine Company, Inc., for a proposed public utility personal wireless facility on the rooftop of the existing Montrose Fire Department building located at 2143 Albany Post Road as shown on a 9 page set of drawings entitled “Zoning Drawings” prepared by Peter J. Tardy, P.E. latest revision dated January 16, 2019.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated good evening.
Mr. Michael Sheridan stated good evening. My name is Michael Sheridan. I’m an attorney with Snyder & Snyder LLP, the attorneys for New York SMSA limited partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless. As was just stated, Verizon Wireless is looking to locate a public utility wireless telecommunications facility on the fire department building at 2143 Albany Post Road. We had a public hearing before this board which has been closed. My understanding is a resolution has been prepared. I only have one minor comment to that. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked to the resolution?

Mr. Michael Sheridan responded to the resolution.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked has that been communicated to our staff?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded it’s just the one that I said that I could not authorize. We need to talk about it. So he wants to bring it up.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked do you want to discuss it now?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded it’s just a minor thing that I wanted to make sure Mike was okay with. I didn’t have a chance to talk to Mike so if he could just bring it up.

Mr. Michael Sheridan stated the one minor modification is to condition 4. Condition 4 says that we “shall respond to the comments of the Director of Technical Services dated November 6th and the Town Consultant dated February 18th.” We did respond to the November 6th comments on January 18th and we just recently responded to the February 18th comments. We understand that there may be additional technical comments that come from staff during the building permit process and certainly we’ll be responding to those and we just ask that that condition be changed to remove and say: “shall respond to any other reasonable comments from the Director of Technical Services.” 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked is that acceptable?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded I think so. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked to amend the wording.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s reflected to what you sent in the PDF?

Mr. Robert Foley asked are we amending the wording in condition 4?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and shall respond to has responded, is that what you’re saying?

Mr. Thomas Bianchi responded no it’s “shall respond to any other comments…”

Mr. Michael Sheridan stated “…prior to the issuance of a building permit.”

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I think what Mr. Sheridan’s proposing meets the intent of that condition. It’s just a matter of changing the semantics.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated he wanted to put the word “reasonable” in there which I was always – our definition of reasonable and his definition of reasonable might be a little different but if Mike’s okay with “all the reasonable comments.”

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated yes I believe the intent’s the same.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated we do have a resolution for this Bob.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we approve resolution #10-19 with the amended wording in condition 4.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Michael Sheridan stated thank you.


*



*



*
PUBLIC HEARING (NEW):

PB 2019-3  a.
Public Hearing - Application of Andrew Young and Susan Todd for a Special Permit for an accessory apartment in an existing accessory building located at 48 Pond Meadow Road as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “Todd Young Residence” prepared by James J. Moorhead, R.A. dated February 19, 2019.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated good evening.
Mr. Andrew Brodnick stated good evening. I’m Andrew Brodnick and I’m here for the applicants. I was here last month and gave an overview for the application that Susan Todd and Andrew Young are making to convert the accessory building on their property to an accessory apartment. I believe it complies with the requirements of the special permit provisions as well as the accessory apartment statute. I was at the work session and I understand that there’s going to be some analysis completed by the Code Enforcement Officer and possibly others regarding issues that were raised by the engineer and some emails that were received. I assume that those responses have not come forward yet. Is that a fair statement?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes. Based on this public hearing our recommendation is that additional analysis needs to be done by our legal department and our Code Enforcement official but we don’t want to stop the public hearing from going on. 

Mr. Andrew Brodnick stated if there’s any other questions, or any questions that weren’t posed to me last month I’d be more than happy to discuss them or we can open it up to the public and I can respond to any of the comments that are made. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated I think what we’ll do is we’ll open it up to the public and then discuss any comments. This is a public hearing. If you’d like to speak on this case please approach the podium. State your name and address.

Mr. Wai Man Chin stated good evening. My name is Wai Man Chin. I live at 42 Pond Meadow Road. I’m the very closest neighbor to them. I’m right next door to them. Based on what they want to do I think that’s wrong only because they were turned down by the Zoning Board already and now they’re trying to go through the Planning Board. The house in question is an accessory structure or is it an accessory house? To me it’s a house. Now, I see floor plans on this thing. They only show the first floor plan. They should show the basement floor plan showing also a two-car garage in this structure which was originally the primary house for Dr. Glen Brennan and his wife and two children before Todd and Young bought the house in the 90s and then they decide to build their house behind this house and somehow this house got stayed up there for some reason and then later on it was indicated that they had to take down the last dome and also take away the kitchen area and use it only for their private use as a studio for his work. I think this board should really take a site visit on this property and look at this pretty large house that’s still there with their new house in the background. I live right next door to them and I can see both structures clearly. Now I know – I’m on the Zoning Board myself. I’ve given many variances for accessory structures, and accessory apartments, and so forth and so on. At that time most of the accessory apartments that in front yards and so forth were probably prior to 1951 before zoning was created. Tom you were on the board with me back then at the same time for maybe 15-20 years. We’ve given many variances but also this is not let’s say an accessory structure. This is something that’s over 2,000 square feet with a two-car garage. Reading on with some of these comments by other people like Ralph Mastromonaco and so forth and so on, they indicate the same thing I’m saying basically that this is not really accessory structure. It’s an accessory house. It’s two houses on one parcel. Has the town ever done that before? No, I don’t think so. You’re having two single-family houses on one parcel. It doesn’t matter how large the parcel is. It could be a two-acre zone, two acre, could be five acres, it doesn’t matter. It’s still two houses on one parcel as far as I’m concerned and it’s pretty large. If the board ever took a site visit, I don’t know who’s case it is, usually on the Zoning Board somebody’s always assigned that case and they go out and take a look at it. I think the board should actually go out and take a look at this thing and see how large this thing is and also request plans for the first floor on the lower level, show them the two-car garage plus the other rooms down there. Right now they’re only showing the top floor. I think that given this application a go ahead I think would be wrong because based on what’s there, it’s in the front yard number one and there’s indications of: what’s a front yard? The front yard is always where you come into the house. It’s the front yard. We do that in Zoning, when you drive down the front it’s your front house, that’s the front of the yard, side yard, side yard, rear yard. There are a lot of things, based on – when we, during on the Zoning it was indicated that this does not meet the requirements of the town’s section 307-45(b4). The final thing at the D&O on the Zoning Board is that it doesn’t meet the requirements of an accessory structure and that was case #2017-20. Vote was 4 to 2 on that and I recused on that vote because they are my next door neighbors. Again, I think what’s here and I guess you have all the documents I have also you can see plenty against them on this whole site. That’s it.
Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated thank you. Is there anyone else? Please step up to the podium and state your name and address.

Mr. Wai Mao Chin stated good evening gentlemen. My name is Wai Mao Chin. I am Wai Man Chin’s brother and my house is right next to his. We built the houses together back in 1979 and 1980. I agree with everything my brother says. I don’t want to add anything else other than the fact that another neighbor had written to this board and to the fellow residents of Colabaugh Pond Road and Colabaugh Pond Lane that this particular owner had donated a sizeable sum and amount of their property to a conservatory. That means the property that is listed at seven point such acres is not seven point such acres anymore it’s a lot less, it’s less what they donated out unless somehow they want to take it back. Thank you.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked thank you. Is there anybody else in the audience that would like to offer any comments?
Mr. Robert Ramsey stated Mr. Chairman, fellow members, my name’s Robert Ramsey and my wife and I have lived at 36 Pond Meadow Road for about 13 years now. Granted this is not a forum for me to be educated as to the workings of the Planning Board and town not politics but the town ordinances but I have to admit, we’re really kind of perplexed as to why it even got to this point. It seemed like it was decided a couple of years ago by the Zoning Board and at the time it seemed like it was a fairly definite decision but here we are now looking at it again and we really don’t understand why. Be that as it may, the purpose of my speaking with you is I think it’s important you understand a little bit about our neighborhood if you haven’t been there already. We’re at the end of a private road. It’s about 1,200 feet or so long, 1,200/1,300 feet long and our houses are clustered at the end of it. That’s the Todd/Young’s house, Wai’s house, Wai Man Chin, Wai Mao Chin, our house and across the road is the Smith’s. Now, the closest neighbor to our grouping is about a thousand feet away. We maintain that road ourselves and in addition to that, our houses are adjacent to and border Colabaugh Pond. Colabaugh Pond is a rather fragile and special body of water. Certainly in the last several years, since we’ve been there anyway, it’s become obvious that it’s in a state of distress. Certainly another house or another unit that’s going to be adjacent to that body of water is certainly not going to do it any good. Moreover, the pond acts as a direct feeding element to the reservoir system. In fact, we’re surrounded by wetlands and the reservoir system pretty much. I think that this particular circumstance would be better if it’s not necessarily just decided in a vacuum but if I can endorse what Wai Chin said, plan a visit. Take a look at what we’re really talking about here and make a very informed decision because there’s a, besides the matter of precedence which I don’t really understand, I think in general the overall application really doesn’t meet the requirements or the overall intent of what the zoning would be for our particular area. Thank you for your time.
Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated thank you. Board members any comments? Anybody else to speak?

Mr. Andrew Brodnick stated just to very briefly address the comments. The building is going to stay the same size whether or not the application is granted or not. I respectfully don’t see that as a relevant objection to the application. With respect to the zoning issues that were raised. We will wait for the Code Enforcement officers and others to weigh in on those issues. I referred to them in a letter last month but rather than address them in a vacuum and wait to hear what they have to say. The property wasn’t donated. There’s a conservation easement on it that Ms. Todd and Mr. Young granted. Again, I don’t see that as a reason why anything would be – rather that being something that would militate against the application. With respect to the pond, when my clients built their current residence, they obtain Board of Health approval for a new septic system which pumped – the septic system was closer to the pond. It’s now at the top of the hill. It’s approved by the Board of Health so they’ve actually invested a great deal of money in terms of improving the septic situation and protecting the pond. The bottom line is that the zoning code is intended to allow accessory apartments by special permit to allow the most efficient use of the town’s stock of dwellings. The sustainable comprehensive town plan encourages flexible zoning policies that allow accessory apartments and streamline the process for approving them. Obviously we’ll wait for the Code Enforcement officer et al. to weigh in that we think we do comply with both the spirit and the particular requirements of both the special permit and the accessory apartment…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked can you just for the record explain why you think it’s not the front yard?

Mr. Andrew Brodnick responded the front yards or side yards are all defined by where the front – it all starts where’s the front lot line and just bear with me for a second. I want to quote it accurately. A front yard is defined as quote “a yard extending across the full width of the lot in line between the front lot line and the nearest line of the building.” Now a front line is defined as quote: “the line that separates the lot from a street or highway right-of-way.” This lot does not front on a street or a highway right-of-way. It’s an open development subdivision. There’s a private road that leads – they’re at the very end of the private road. There wouldn’t be much point at 1,000 at the end of a 1,200 foot driveway to make sure that the house shifted so it’s facing the street that’s 1,200 feet away. You have to have a front line which separates a lot from street or a highway to have a front, side or rear yard. Every definition of front, side, or rear ties into whether or not you have a front lot line. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so you’re basically saying they have no front yard?

Mr. Andrew Brodnick responded exactly and it makes sense because it’s at the end of a private driveway.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so what are you calling it then? Tell me what you call it. So what do you call it? When you say let’s go stand in the…

Mr. Andrew Brodnick stated I would say you walk out of the front of the house and that’s what you would call a front yard but if you walk out of the front of the house and you keep walking, you’re not going to hit a street. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so you’re standing in front of the house and you’re standing on ground and is it a yard?

Mr. Andrew Brodnick responded not under the code but I hear what you’re saying and if you walk out of this house and you take a site visit you’ll see, you walk out of the house and the accessory building is on the side. It’s not in front of the house. It actually, again not under the code is it on the side yard because there’s no front lot line that fronts upon a street. But really if you look at it you’ll see. The house faces this way and the accessory building is off to the side.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and the purpose and the ZBA decision said it was a front yard?

Mr. Andrew Brodnick responded oh no, they didn’t address that at all.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what was their reason for – can we get a copy of that by the way, the ZBA decision?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I think you got it. Maybe not in this packet. If you don’t think you got it…

Mr. Robert Foley asked how many pages?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it’s only one page. I’ll make sure you have it if you don’t have it. Their Decision and Order said – it was the whole issue of “an accessory apartment can exist in an accessory structure that existed prior to 1979” and the Zoning Board said this was a primary structure prior to 1979 not an accessory structure. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked therefore they had to do what?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded therefore they could not proceed as far as the Zoning Board was concerned. But that’s up to you.

Mr. Andrew Brodnick stated when we were at the work session Mr. Cunningham stated that in fact the ZBA had no jurisdiction to issue that ruling because there was nothing being appealed from. I will note for the record that we did move for a re-hearing and a re-hearing was granted but we never proceeded with it because Mr. Wood, the Town Attorney issued an opinion saying that because of the lack of jurisdiction we were entitled to move directly before the Planning Board for a special permit. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked are you saying on the issue of the front yard, side yard, whatever, you said that the street which I guess is Pond Meadow Road is 1,200 feet from the front door of the house?

Mr. Andrew Brodnick responded Mount Airy Road is 1,200 feet from…

Mr. Robert Foley stated Mount Airy is the main road.

Mr. Andrew Brodnick stated correct, exactly. It’s a not a street, it’s a private right-of-way.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated our Code Enforcement Director Martin Rogers makes all determinations as to whether there’s a front, side, and rear yards, lot line and setback requirements. In past interpretation, interpretation’s the wrong word but in past review and application of the definition a front yard is anything in front of the primary principal dwelling forward to the front. So everything in front of the main lot towards Mount Airy Road would be considered a front yard and that’s something I believe Martin Rogers will weigh in on in his review memo.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so what would be the importance of his statement about 1,200 feet which is quite a distance.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated it doesn’t matter. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated it doesn’t matter, it’s still…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated you could have a 12 acre lot and it’s everything in the front.

Mr. Andrew Brodnick stated I would respectfully submit it has to front on a street or a highway right-of-way in order to have to be oriented to have a front lot line and there’s no lot line in this property that fronts on a street because it’s an open development subdivision which allows houses to be built off a private right-of-way.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but if it’s ambiguous that’s what the ZBA does is that right? It’s like the Supreme Court, they read the constitution and they make an interpretation of it.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated Martin Rogers will make an interpretation and a decision if -- they have the right to appeal his determination at the Zoning Board of Appeals.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that was not an issue before them. 

Mr. Andrew Brodnick stated no, that was not what they wrote on…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated there was also an allegation on memos that the structure was higher than allowed for an accessory apartment? Is that true or not?

Mr. Andrew Brodnick responded yes, it’s true.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated true that it’s…

Mr. Andrew Brodnick stated it is higher but it was authorized when it was a single-family dwelling and the position we would take is it was approved to be converted into an accessory building and therefore is a conforming use. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated another interpretation to make.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated it would be reviewed by the Code Enforcement official and an official determination will be made.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated part of 1979.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked Pond Meadow Road is that the name of the non-street? And so that’s a private road? It’s not a section 189 road?

Mr. Andrew Brodnick responded section 189…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I don’t believe that has any relevance to the discussion.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated I just don’t understand how they don’t have a street.

Mr. Andrew Brodnick stated I think it’s under the 180 under the highway law, houses are required to have direct access to a street unless it’s approved as an open development plan which is where you have a private driveway which serves multiple houses, which I’m sure you probably reviewed at some point before the Planning Board. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated that would have been reviewed and approved at the time of subdivision.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think it’s 280.

Mr. Michael Cunningham stated 280(a).

Mr. Robert Foley asked may I also ask when the gentleman mentioned about the acreage, does that have any bearing on what our decision would be, the reduction and their ownership because they gave…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated they didn’t reduce their ownership. They simply encumbered a portion of their lot with the conservation easement. As long as this isn’t impacting the conservation land which it isn’t – you don’t reduce your lot area by encumbering it with a conservation easement. The code permits two bedrooms in an accessory apartment in an accessory structure, is this proposed to have two bedrooms or one bedroom?

Mr. Andrew Brodnick responded it’s one bedroom.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated we’ve already commented in our review memo that the layout and the floor plan would be referred to the Health Department and our code official to make sure the bedroom count stays at one. I believe there’s a five bedroom approval for the existing sanitary system, as Chris informed me, one for the main house and one for the apartment so there’s five bedrooms total allowed for that septic system. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated if it ever moves that far and they want to have a second bedroom in the accessory apartment they need different approvals from the County Health Department because they’re only permitted for five bedrooms.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked is there room to build another bedroom in that house?

Mr. Andrew Brodnick responded theoretically…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated the floor plan has to be referred to the Department of Health. It could be considered a two-bedroom as laid out on that plan so we’ll have our Code Enforcement official review it and also refer it to the DOH for their review and determination on whether or not there’s one or two bedrooms with that floor plan. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated okay thank you. As you can see there’s a lot more to be done here in terms of further analysis and decision making. We’re going to keep the public hearing open for next month. I think the site visit is probably a good idea, probably at the appropriate time whenever you feel we can do it…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated well if you want to keep the public hearing open.

Mr. Andrew Young stated good evening. I’m Andrew Young one of the property owners. Just wanted to make it clear that we were in no way trying to subvert any process by coming to the Planning Board after having been to the Zoning Board. It’s true the ruling of the Zoning Board, we questioned it because we already had a C of O for our domes as an accessory structure and so we didn’t understand how they could vote that it wasn’t and then the Town Attorney told us that they actually didn’t have that authority and that we were free and clear to come here with this proposal. That’s why we’re here. We absolutely welcome you to come to a site visit and look around and figure out what you think is the front yard or the side yard. You can step straight out of the front door and walk straight and you won’t go by or near this structure but again, you have to just come and look at it. When we built it, it was approved with a one bedroom, septic for a one bedroom. It’s approved as a dwelling and we have every intention of keeping it that way and respecting the environmental capacity and that’s also why we did convert part of our land as a conservation easement. That’s very important to us. That’s all I really have to say. We just welcome you all to come and have a look at it yourselves. It is also only 1,700 square feet it’s not 2,000 square feet just for the record but you can come and measure.

Ms. Susan Todd stated hi I’m Susan Todd. I’m also one of the owners with Andy and I thank the Planning Board for looking at this application. I remember some very kind things that my neighbors have done in the past and I appreciate those things. I do however do not believe that an apartment in our accessory building would have any adverse effects on the neighborhood at all. I also feel that nor are there – there are three other neighbors on Pond Meadow who wrote to you all in strong support of our request. They individually, particularly [Leeanna Varga] has experienced the difficulty of finding rental apartments in the Town of Cortlandt in particular in the Croton Harmon school district. These are things that I think are a mandate for the Planning Board and for our town is to help provide those stock of affordable housing and rentals. We have all the permits that are necessary for this accessory apartment application. Twenty years ago we got a permit to turn the domes into an accessory building with a one bedroom studio written in the Department of Health permit for the septic system. The basement of the domes water runs through. It is unfinished. It is spidery and it is not anything that would count in the square footage. This is a cottage. It is a funky structure. It’s an accessory building. It is not a house. It has never been a house. It has never been a two-family house, two houses on this – on our seven acre lot. That is completely bogus. Also, if we had a renter in this apartment it would be maybe one or two cars. We’re not talking any high traffic. We’re not talking any disruption. Andy and I are probably the most environmentally conscious people on that road. We put our property in a conservation easement for the Westchester Land Trust. I have served on the board of the Westchester Land Trust. We make our living making natural history films that educate people about caring for the environment. Our film right now is in the American Museum of Natural History showing six times a day and we made some of that film on this property. Do you think we don’t care? Come on. Thank you for considering this. We look forward to having you to our house and I hope that we can get this application done. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated thank you.

Mr. Andrew Young stated thank you all.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked are there additional comments?

Mr. Wai Man Chin responded yes, I’d like to say something. Usually for the front yard, if you go across the front of the house, take a line straight across ending in front of that line is the front yard. In Zoning it’s always that case. Their house is situated over there but if you took a line from their front of the house straight across, that dome is in their front yard. I know, I’m right next door to it. What I’d like to say is one thing is if they want to rent this structure. I still consider it a house. It was always a house until they built the second house. It was Dr. Brennan’s house. His wife’s house and the two children’s house. They had three domes there. They took away one dome because they had to get down to a certain square footage but that square footage is still over 2,000 square feet I would say. Those are not small domes, especially the middle dome or the other one. The smaller dome has a two-car garage underneath of it. I’ve been in that dome many times when Dr. Brenan used to live there and they used to have rooms downstairs. Does water run through? I would say water runs through anyplace if there’s a heavy flood but I don’t see that as a point. Any house, water can be taken out by putting sub pumps or doing whatever  you’ve got to do to take out water from a house anywhere including a basement but most of that basement is above ground. The only part of it is below ground on the big dome is towards the back side of it or the right side of it. Like I said, I don’t know if you ever saw, they were trying to rent their house and the dome house as a nanny house or nanny apartment for somebody to rent their house at one point which is over six months ago. It used to be on real estate. I’m sure if you look on Zillow they have it on there that they show their house and they were trying to rent the whole house, the house that they built plus the dome house as a nanny or a sub whatever and they had pictures of everything in there with kitchens and so forth and so on. Why is that there when you don’t even have an approval for an accessory apartment, when the kitchen was supposed to be taken out many, many years ago. I’ve been living there since 1979. Doctor Brenan built the house in 1974 I believe, about five years prior and Pond Meadow Road that goes in there right now, of course the Town gave us a name because only for emergency vehicles so emergency, police, fire department, could find your address otherwise it would be just a private road with no name on it. So the town itself gave Pond Meadow Road, Pond Meadow Lane and everybody a different number. There’s 48, mine’s 42, my brother’s 38 so forth and so on. The road comes around, when you come down to their part of the road which comes around my property, goes right down to their house. That’s the front as far as I’m concerned. Once it goes into their property that’s their front yard. That’s all I have to say.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked anyone else?

Mr. Wai Mao Chin stated I just want to make a couple of little points that I’ve heard during the course of the night. Everybody’s saying that the property 48 Pond Meadow Road from Mount Airy is approximately a 1,000 to 1,200 feet. I personally drive in there every night after I pick up my wife and I look at my odometer and my odometer reads four tenths of a mile every time I come in or out. Four tenths of a mile is almost a half a mile, a mile being 5,260 some odd feet and that’s to my house. To the Todd’s house I would say, coming around the hill, past my brother’s property and down the hill, down to Colabaugh Pond, I would add another 500 feet. So we’re talking 2,500 feet minimum and as far as the basement of that building, I particularly know that building very well because Dr. Glen Brenan and his wife had approached me back in 1974 to purchase that building because he could not afford to keep it. I made a deal with him to buy the building and I offered him X amount of dollars. I’m not going to say how much. I offered him X amount of dollars and as a turn he said I was cheating him so as a neighbor I said, just give me back the money I gave you as a deposit. Forget about my coming in there with dumpsters and cleaning up the place and straightening out. You go and sell the building for whatever your lawyer thinks that you can get better that I offered. Well it turns out he lost over $20,000 from what I offered him. Regardless, I know that building because I had it for almost six months during the course of getting the contracts and that downstairs basement while I had it was very dry. The room was dry. Huge garage and it was a livable space, therefore in my mind that downstairs room can be construed as a second bedroom. The main structure which is the big dome has a huge area on top of it, a raised platform in the middle. My kids used to play up there. They used to play castle. That huge dome on top of the area on top of the dome, if you put up a couple of walls and even glass panels, that’s a third bedroom. The building itself is a house, it’s not an apartment. Thank you.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated thank you.

Mr. Andrew Young stated I know you’re all eager to be done with this but I just have to add a few things. We respect our neighbors very much and we’re glad that people have a chance to air their opinions about this and that’s great. We obviously do respectfully disagree and the best thing is you all being able to come and see for yourself. I do want to know, after visiting it, if any of you could look at me in the eye and say that they would live or that someone could live in our basement. It’s very clear that it’s not a habitable space but you’ll be able to see that for yourself. We tried very hard to be the best neighbors that we can be. We put a lot of time and energy into organizing things like the snow plowing, because we don’t have a formal road agreement. When we did buy the domes and moved in we moved our driveway away from Mr. Chin’s house so that we both had more privacy. We respect their privacy and we certainly expect the same of ours. We care very much about being good neighbors. The reference to having our house up for rent, yes, we’ve thought about moving out of the neighborhood. We’ve thought about downsizing. We’re not completely sure it’s something that we want to do but we had the idea that maybe we would rent for a couple of years and live somewhere else and see what that’s like. I don’t think there’s really any issue with doing that. I’m not aware of not being allowed to do that. We don’t know whether these things are relevant but what I do think is relevant is coming and seeing for yourself what it’s really all like. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated thank you.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and not addressing what happened in the past but if you get the special permit for the accessory apartment approved you have to live in one of the two units.

Mr. Andrew Young responded absolutely and we would stay put. Thank you.

Ms. Sarah Young stated hi I’m Sarah Young. I’m Andy Young’s sister and Susan’s sister-in-law. I’m just here in support of them. They’re very conscious and environmentally conscious and they do so much for education and they are very conscientious and caring people. And I believe that absolutely that dome’s became an accessory when they took away a dome. It’s not like a single-family house at all. It would be an accessory, a low-rent apartment which would be a nice thing for a young person who’s studies environmental studies or whatever. They’re very helpful to the community. I’m here in support of them.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated thank you. Anyone else who would like to speak on this matter? As I indicated, additional analysis needs to be performed on this case. We will look at a site visit in the meantime.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you would typically go out on a Sunday. The Sunday before the meeting is May 5th. I will be out of town on May 5th. You can carry on without me but the Sunday before that is Sunday April 28th. I’m available the 28th.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated make it April 28th.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the next meeting is May 7th. I’m just not around May 5th. If it’s easier for you guys to go May 5th, that’s fine. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked is there anything we need from Code or anybody else before that site visit or you think we’re okay?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded I think there’s been a lot of statements made at tonight’s public hearing so I’m going to ask our Director of Code Enforcement to create a summary sheet of all the permits that were issued, sort of a title search so-to-speak, outlining the past uses of the property, when the buildings were constructed, when the permits were issued, what the permits were issued for and for him to make a determination as to what the definition of a front yard is. I also just want to state there was a little miscommunication earlier in the discussion. There’s multiple definitions of yards within the town’s zoning ordinance and all of them should have been read including just the definition of a yard which states: “measurements from the front of the building to a lot line.” That would be determined by our Code Enforcement official as well. And then from there I think all that information plus the site inspection would provide you all the information you need to make a decision.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and we’ll have that before the site inspection?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded yes.

Mr. Michael Cunningham stated the town attorney’s office will also write a memo about the jurisdictional questions because I believe it’s really sort of two tracks of questions. There’s the use and dimensional questions and there’s also the jurisdictional questions and whether or not it’s properly before the Planning Board. So we’ll issue a memo as well.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated okay, thank you. We’ll keep the public hearing open until next month.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated Mr. Chair I move that we adjourn the public hearing and schedule a site visit for the 28th and have Code Enforcement take a look and issue its report as well as a report on the history of the property.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and just for the record that would most likely be 9:00 a.m. on Sunday morning the 28th. 

Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I’m not going to read them all but just for the record there were several emails that came in, in support of the application and opposition to the application. I don’t want to go into reading them all but just for the record there’s probably 15 or 20 that the Planning Board members – they’ve received every email that came into me was distributed to the board.

With all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated thank you.



*



*



*
OLD BUSINESS:

PB 6-15  a. Application of Hudson Ridge Wellness Center, Inc. for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit to reuse the seven existing buildings located at the former Hudson Institute property to provide a 92 bed private residential treatment program for individuals who are recovering from chemical dependency on a 20.83 acre property located at 2016 Quaker Ridge Road as shown on a 7 page set of drawings entitled “Hudson Ridge Wellness Center” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated December 4, 2018.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked do we have anyone here representing the applicant in this case? I believe we received a letter from our Town Attorney recommending that the Planning Board adjourn this matter to the next meeting.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated yes, and just for the record, the town Code Enforcement office generated a memo which was distributed to the Planning Board. It is posted on our website now with all of the items associated with this Planning Board meeting and is also available in my office. That’s a critical memo that the applicant is needing to respond to so that’s why the case will be adjourned to next month.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked that was the March 21st? 

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded from Martin Rogers? Yes.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated if there’s no further discussion…


Mr. Peter Daly stated Mr. Chairman I move that we adjourn this to the May 7th meeting.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated thank you.

PB 2019-5  b.
Application of New York SMSA Limited Partnership, for the property of Bezo Enterprises, LLC for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit for a proposed public utility personal wireless facility (telecommunications tower) on a portion of a 6 acre parcel of property located at 52 Montrose Station Road as shown on a 10 page set of drawings  entitled “Preliminary and Final Site Plans” prepared by Colleen Connolly, P.E. latest revision dated February 8, 2019.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated good evening.
Mr. Michael Sheridan stated good evening. My name is Michael Sheridan. I’m an attorney with Snyder & Snyder, the attorneys for New York SMSA Limited Partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless. As was indicated, Verizon Wireless is looking to locate a public utility wireless telecommunication facility at 52 Montrose Station Road. We submitted the application and have received comments from the Town Engineer which we are in the process of addressing. I’d also like to just address one statement that was made at the last meeting. There is a one bedroom residence on the property. It’s next to the barn. I believe last meeting it was stated that there was only the barn on the property but there is a one bedroom residence as well. At this meeting discussing with staff we’re looking to schedule a balloon test to do a visual analysis of the area and have discussed with staff the date of April 27th with a rain date of April 28th. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so that would mean you’d be working both Saturday and Sunday that weekend to your position. We probably should have thought of that but – what else are you going to do? Because you’ll be out on the 28th going to the Todd apartment and the 27th you’re going to be looking at the balloon test.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated I don’t know if we want to do two days in a row. Can we do it the 28th?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we can talk to the Todd’s about doing the site inspection on Saturday.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated or you can schedule the balloon test on the 28th. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what exactly do we do looking at a balloon test? I’m just curious. 
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated there’s a whole reason so you guys can drive by it or actually get out and go to it to see how it impacts the community. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked really? I thought you were going to take pictures?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded there’s a couple of things that need to be set up. We’re hoping to schedule a balloon test with the understanding now’s the best time to do the test because the leaves are still off the trees. If we wait until May or June there’ll be leaves on. It will be difficult, potentially, to spot the tower which is good and bad in certain ways. It’s good for it being screened bad in doing a visual assessment. But in any event, there’s a couple of things that need to be done in concurrence with the scheduling of the balloon test which is the applicant submitting a visual assessment analysis which is creating a digital terrain model or a digital elevation model in order to identify parcels that could conceivably see the lattice tower from their property. So that has to be established and identified. That has not been done or submitted. So the balloon test is only the first step. We’ve also performed a staff inspection of the property. We were out there earlier this week and we determined that the location of the tower had not been staked out yet so that needs to be done. A survey needs to be prepared. The corners of the compound need to be staked and the center of the proposed lattice tower needs to be established and we will recommend with the balloon test would be at the balloon test diameter of the balloon is an equivalent size to the radius of the proposed antenna. We don’t just float a two-footer or three foot diameter balloon. We float a balloon that’s of a potential equal size of the antenna array. So that could be a six or ten foot diameter balloon, something that needs to be considered and evaluated with the applicant. That’s our position. We would feel comfortable proceeding with an April 27th test to establish portions of the visual impact.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked is the balloon test notified to the public? 

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded we would do a public notice and then a direct mailing to the residents within 1,500 linear feet of the proposed antenna.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated and the radius around.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated 1,500 feet around will get written notification that the balloon would be up from 10:00 to 2:00 or 8:00 to 12:00, whenever it would be up.

Mr. Michael Sheridan stated and I would say just to speak to Mike’s point, we are preparing that map to discuss with staff and it should be ready and we can schedule a conference call early next week to go over that. I’m not sure who you want on that call. We’ll go over it with Verizon’s the visual, third party visual assessor that Verizon has retained to do this. He will explain everything, how the map works, what it’s showing and the locations that he proposes to go out and take pictures from during the balloon test. And then once those pictures are taken he’ll create a report which will show some locations where the balloon is visible from and prepare a simulation showing what the tower would look like from those areas showing also areas where the balloon is not visible from to give the board an idea of what a general idea of what it’s going to look like when it’s done.
Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated we would like to go out on the same day for both site visits.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated maybe to Steve’s point. If the balloon is going to be up, you can on your own, drive around and see it which may be as helpful as getting there and looking up at it. I don’t know if they actually want to go to the site.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated it mostly falls on us to make sure the balloon is actually set up on that date so that a visual assessment can be complete.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so you don’t have to work that day. If you’re out and around you can look at it.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated it’s not far from me. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you probably might be able to see it. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated this is by Maple.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated yes it’s up Maple and Montrose Station Road.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the old Picciano – the Picciano subdivision was approved years ago but that’s three lots. That’s probably the last time you guys were up there.

Mr. Robert Foley stated since the balloon is going up on a Saturday on Sunday on the way back from Todd…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I don’t think it stays up…

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated it doesn’t stay up that long. It’s only about half a day.

Mr. Michael Sheridan stated the balloon will be up – we can decide a time with staff exactly but usually in the morning. It’s better to be up earlier. The winds are lower in the morning so that’s when you get the best view. If the winds kick up in the afternoon you want to be able to get most of your pictures in the morning. It would be taken down in the afternoon. It wouldn’t be up. But ideally you want to have it for the 27th with a rain date or wind date for the 28th just in case the weather isn’t cooperating, that you have that additional date.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so in other words if the neighbors want to do an assessment if they’re away for that weekend…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated a report is going to be prepared.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated there’s a couple of things to consider. The balloon has to be set for a minimum timeframe in which we established I believe of four hours but also has to be up sufficient length for the visual assessment to be performed. The properties in which photos have to be taken from, a view shed has to be created. We need to give ample time for the photographer of the simulator to be able to drive around and take pictures and evaluate those locations. We’ll have a minimum time the balloon will be up. It could be a little bit longer and also once the notices go out if an individual requests photographs from their property, we would have to work that out with the applicant to make sure they can access the property and takes pictures from there as well.

Mr. Michael Sheridan stated I think we’d want to work out with staff the number of pictures taken because it does take time to get to the locations to take pictures that if there’s an overabundance of pictures…
Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I agree. You don’t need to take a picture from every adjacent neighbor.

Mr. Michael Sheridan stated we can discuss that. The view shed analysis is in later this week. I’ll get it into you and then we can discuss that.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked and there will be ample notice for the neighbors to know that this is going on?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded we’ve got to have this meeting pretty fast because we want to get the notices out to people. Next week would give them 15 days or something like that.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated we want to make sure nobody’s excluded.

Mr. Robert Foley asked on your memo or Mike’s memo Verizon will own the tower or the property owner? Who’s Bezo Enterprises?

Mr. Michael Sheridan responded Bezo Enterprises is the property owner.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so they are the owner of the tower?

Mr. Michael Sheridan responded I’d have to check the lease on that. My initial impression is that it would be Verizon that owns the tower. I don’t have the lease in front of me though. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked and it will entertain Verizon equipment as well as other companies…

Mr. Michael Sheridan responded at this time the application is for Verizon equipment. The tower is designed to handle co-locators. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated co-location.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and if they come along you have to allow it right?

Mr. Michael Sheridan responded “have to” I need to check on that but certainly I believe they would want to.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked and this is a lattice structure as I understand it. It’s not a pole?

Mr. Michael Sheridan responded yes, that’s correct.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked like a triangular...

Mr. Michael Sheridan responded correct. It’s a lattice. It’s designed as a…

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked any particular reason why that’s used instead of – I’m not saying it’s better or worse but is there any particular reason why you’re going with a lattice?

Mr. Michael Sheridan responded I believe, and I need confirmation from the engineer, my understanding is that the location where it is because it’s up on a sort of a ridge that that is the best design to handle that terrain between construction and design.

Mr. Robert Foley asked is it susceptible to wind damage in the event of high winds, the lattice structure or could it be blown onto the neighbor’s property? Is it a hazard? I don’t know.

Mr. Michael Sheridan responded it depends on the definition of high winds. I believe the structure will be designed in compliance with all state and local regulations that it needs to comply with.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated the wind mode is calculated within the structural design. In one of my comments was that the fall zone was not evaluated with the initial application so we do have regulations within our local telecommunication ordinance to establish fall zones for lattice towers and for monopoles. It has to fall within the property without impacting adjacent property and/or adjacent structures. So that has to be fully evaluated still. Also during our site inspection we did notice that there was a significant amount of rock outcropping and the tower was proposed within a ridge line so we would just want the board made privy and aware that there could be potential blasting on that site so-to-speak so that’s something that has to be looked at as far as an environmental impact. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the same consultant that looked at the 2143 Albany Post Road, the fire station’s been retained and we did the site inspection with him earlier this week, I guess yesterday, and he’s going to generate a report, a real detailed report. We just haven’t gotten it yet. 

Mr. Michael Sheridan stated there’s no blasting proposed at this time. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated it’s something that has to be worked out and discussed. There’s a significant amount of rock on the property.

Mr. Robert Foley asked as far as any debris from the site that’s covered in the town code? I’m asking for a reason. Cell towers have been around but...

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated it needs to be evaluated under the town’s telecommunication ordinance. I don’t know exactly what’s been done or looked at in the past but in our review we’re as thorough as possible within the purviews of the town’s telecommunications ordinance and FCC regulations.

Mr. Michael Sheridan stated it is going to be designed to be compliant with all state and local regulations. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated at our next meeting it will be brought back as old business but there won’t be too much in terms of results to present to us at that time yet, right?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I think the visual and the report doing the parameters of the visual analysis will be done. The visual analysis probably won’t be done because you’re going to be taking the pictures on the 27th.

Mr. Michael Sheridan stated we will have done the balloon test and we can report on that. I don’t think – I anticipate that we will not have the report in hand that closely after the balloon test.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked will you be able to give us a verbal summary of whatever you find during the…

Mr. Michael Sheridan responded certainly.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Mr. Chairman I move that we refer this back to staff, set a balloon test for the 27th.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated with a rain date of the 28th.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated thank you. Have a good evening.

Mr. Michael Sheridan stated thank you.

*



*



*
NEW BUSINESS 

PB 2019-6  a.
Application of Acadia Cortlandt Crossing, LLC for Amended Site Plan approval for parking and driveway modifications to retail building “Pad C” to include a new drive-through lane for customer food pick-up and modifications to parking, walkways, landscaping and the refuse container storage area for property located at 3144 E. Main St. (Cortlandt Boulevard) as shown on a 15 page set of drawings entitled “Cortlandt Crossing – Pad C Site Plan Amendment” prepared by Gerhard Schwalbe, P.E. dated March 20, 2019.

Mr. Gerry Schwalbe stated good evening Mr. Chairman and members of the board. My name is Jerry Schwalbe. With me tonight is Manan Joshi from Acadia Realty as well. This is basically trying to clean up, wrap up part of the site development, as you know is open and underway. We have ShopRite, the major tenant on the first side of the building and HomeSense on the other side. The area in question is what we call or refer to as Pad C which is on the west side of the site. Originally the site plan I believe was about 8,000 square feet when this board approved it and obviously when tenants come in things change, different size requirements and space allocations. But basically it’s the same pad site that we had originally approved back a couple of years ago. The driveways are the same location. The parking is a little bit different. This is a specific site or building for several tenants. One is a food service establishment, the other one’s going to be maybe on the medical side on one side of it and the request was made by the tenant to provide a drive-through on the one side of the building which is the back of the building coming to the west side of the building where there would be a window to allow for pickup. The parking then is adjusted around that but basically is the same parking arrangements are there. Circulation’s slightly different. As you can see there’s a rendering of the site plan as well. The brown obviously is the building shape itself. The tan areas are more the concrete walkways then there’s a curved element on the one side and that is a driveway dedicated just for pickup. This is not a place like other fast food or things like that where you order, you speak into a microphone. This is more, you have an online application like they all do now, and you order your food and they tell you when it’s ready then you come pick it up. This is just a pickup window. Actually the food is already purchased on line so there’s no exchange of money so it’s a very quick in-and-out. It’s how they like to do it. Obviously the parking’s in the front is accommodating ADA spaces as well. All the doors facing the front for primary access. There’s doors in the back for service and so forth to get back to a new refuse station pad that’s over to the left there. You’ll see in the green area there. So that’s just a pad with plantings around it and a fence that will cover the front of it during times when it’s not being used for disposal or pickup. There’s also, I think you may have not seen as a minor amendment administratively for a little driveway off the main driveway and it’s inbound only. So if you look it lines up kind of where the drop off or the pickup lane is so that driveway was added I think last year is when they put that in. That accesses to the site. You can only make an inbound approach to that, you can’t outbound it. There would obviously be signage and everything else for it. Then likewise the outbound lane towards Route 6 is there. That maintains a one-way outbound but the driveway between that and going up to the main center is still two-way. So folks that are going to that particular retail pad can leave out on the westbound side or they can go back into the center and continue shopping or use the other driveways if they like. Emergency vehicles can still access around there. The driveways are maintained as wide as we could and the parking lots still accommodate the parking. We may have lost a few spaces in there but generally – this particular pad is actually about 8.8 spaces per thousand square feet so it’s pretty generous. Like I said, I think this building was much larger than the 8,000 our initial review with the town but certainly right now it’s a little over 6,100 square feet and consistent with the original plan that we had. Landscaping is going to be the same as we had it. There is some landscaping out there already. I don’t know if you’ve driven by but in the front along Route 6 is landscaped. Obviously the seasonal landscaping are not in yet. They’ll be going in obviously in a month or so. And then the embankment along the rock face we worked hard with the board to create that rock face on that side, retaining walls and re-planting has been completed as well. Pretty much the same but we wanted to bring you up-to-date on those changes. 
Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated okay, thank you.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked did you always plan two tenants in that space?

Mr. Gerry Schwalbe responded I mean it could have been three. It happens to be two there. If it was 8,000, you’re right it more than likely would have been three I would think. The last slide is really the illustrations of the architecture that’s been proposed for it. They’ve also been asked to meet with AARC and they’re setting up that meeting as well to go through some of the…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I was just going to point out the AARC floats around not bothering anybody for years and years and then all of a sudden something pops up so there’s a lot of emails back-and-forth about this. It’s just really I think a meeting would be helpful because they know enough that they were approving boxes and not particular tenants that moved in but they have similar comments that they had last time. They want to talk about some of the treatments and things like that.

Mr. Gerry Schwalbe stated and I think that’s fair. I think they’ll try and set that up now.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated one last question and then we can move on. Can you go back – the curb is the drive through right? The yellow? Is there anything – is it just an open road or is there anything around that curve that is bollards or a wall or something?

Mr. Gerry Schwalbe responded there’s bollards. The actual curve, where Chris is showing, there will be bollards there so you don’t have people coming from the other driveway trying to cut in. We did that purposefully for that reason. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked what happens if people order on line and they show up but their meal is not ready but the next guy who comes his meal is ready?

Mr. Gerry Schwalbe responded they have to go through. They can’t stay there.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked won’t they block other people?

Mr. Gerry Schwalbe responded the intent I guess is if the food is not ready we’ll tell them to leave or just go around. You can circle just right around again. It’s not that far to do that.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and also a place you can eat in as well?

Mr. Gerry Schwalbe responded oh yes I’m sorry. There is seating inside. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked down below where Steve was talking towards Route 6, where that arrow goes – in other words they can only come out of that front parking lot and go right and back around? Why can’t they just go left and out of the complex?

Mr. Gerry Schwalbe responded they can. Down there they can. It’s a one-way on the east side of the building. You see where the angled parking is? So that’s one way going up that way and then you would have to make a left either go into the lane or go out the driveway. From that driveway out you can go left or right.

Mr. Robert Foley asked I’m talking about down below.

Mr. Gerry Schwalbe responded below you can go left or right.  Because we didn’t want to preclude people from going back to the center if they really needed to, because some folks may just park in the front and pickup their food and leave that way too.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the very bottom is right out only onto Route 6.

Mr. Gerry Schwalbe stated that portion, right. DOT mandated that you not have inbound there.

Mr. Robert Foley stated there’s signage saying you can’t come in even though people do.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated as it was mentioned the AARC is going to be meeting with the applicant to discuss the architectural treatments of this building as well as building Pad B which is HomeSense where the clock tower is to potentially put some treatments over the clock tower. And also we just from a site planning perspective just want to mention that there was a slight change and modification to the slope and the retaining wall between this property and the school in which we’re working with the applicant to resolve some esthetic features, put some additional plantings and lower the retaining wall of course a brick to make it blend into the hillside as well.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked I’m sorry I just have one question about that. I know it’s hard to understand where you’re trying to point to on the screen. Sort of on the lower left towards Route 6 just to the left of the pad, there’s an arrow towards Route 6 and there’s an arrow back up. So that portion – I don’t understand. Where are people going when they’re going back up? They’re pulling out of the parking lot of pad C and going back up?

Mr. Gerry Schwalbe responded if they want to go to the center at that point. I mean it’s probably a rare thing I guess. If you come out of there you can go back into the center at that point. So if you want to continue shopping or you want to …

Mr. George Kimmerling stated but you could also just go around and up that way.

Mr. Gerry Schwalbe responded yes you could. You could come back out and go back down the main driveway.

Mr. George Kimmerling stated it seems like a little bit confusing pattern just to not park to the side of the building.

Mr. Gerry Schwalbe stated yes but we just didn’t want to preclude someone not to be allowed to go back into the center.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked so those bollards are super important to keep the folks in that lane and not pulling out into oncoming traffic.

Mr. Gerry Schwalbe stated the good thing there is that the pavement is actually different it’s concrete versus asphalt so it’s a different pavement pattern. It kind of changes the look of it a little bit too.

Mr. Robert Foley asked the two-way part of it would be in double yellow lines down the middle?

Mr. Gerry Schwalbe responded probably just the single line down there. Most likely I think they’ve been using the double yellow in that location. So it will be clear you can go both ways in there.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated okay thank you. Anyone else?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I don’t think we have issues other than architectural review so you could have us prepare a resolution subject to them getting architectural approval if you were so inclined.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Mr. Chairman I move that we refer this back to staff for a preparation of a resolution and also refer this to the Architectural Review Committee as well.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Gerry Schwalbe stated thank you very much. Goodnight. 

PB 2019-7  b.
Application of Nabil Khoury for Amended Site Development Plan approval and a Wetland Permit for a proposed 35 ft. by 75 ft. 4 bay garage, a 480 sq. ft. building addition and additional parking for an approximately 1.835 acre of property located at 2311 Crompond Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Westchester Auto Exchange” prepared by Architectural Visions, PLLC dated March 14, 2019 (see prior PB 10-07)

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated good evening.
Mr. Joel Greenberg stated good evening. My name is Joel Greenberg the architect for the project. As you probably know I pass by this site quite often. It was previously a gas station and in fact the canopy of course is still up there. What we’re proposing to do is to remove the canopy and there’s a little office area under the canopy which we want to increase to make a larger office and by handicap bathrooms for the staff. The other part of the building which is a new building which would be approximately 35’ x 75’ would be for a four bay garage. As you know it’s an auto exchange where cars are brought in and then in this new building they would be prepped for sale instead of having to go out to an outside vendor to get them prepped for sale. Basically we’re providing, based on the square footage we are required for 12 parking spaces, although the staff would only be two but the rest will be for customer parking as required by the code and the other areas in the front would be for display of cars for sale. I’ll answer any questions.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked and what is the use of the garage again?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded basically right now let’s say you bring the car and you say you want to sell the car…

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked is it a repair operation or prep operation?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded basically preparation. Right now they have to send it out to an outside vendor. With this they can do it on site. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked so prepare cars for sale in other words, clean them, wax them or whatever…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked new or used? New?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded used cars. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked Chris can you point out with the cursor the back line of the property off of Buttonwood?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded according to their drawings from the end of the new garage it’s 250 some odd feet to the back of their property.

Mr. Robert Foley stated but that’s through a wetland. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated correct. This line here is…

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated the dashed line represents the wetland.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and this is all wetland back here.

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded yes, the entire back of the site is all wetlands. It was just reflagged I believe in June of 2018. It was flagged and the surveyor noted all the flags on the site plan. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I stopped there this afternoon to look from Buttonwood and there’s a chain link fence or gate. Where would that be on there?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded Chris right where the double arrow is right onto Buttonwood Road. That’s where the gate is.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and that’s where one vehicle was pulled in and kind of a muddy area but it was still I guess out of the wetlands. 

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded yes, correct. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked now how much of this is in the wetland buffer?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded basically the whole property is in the wetland buffer.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so that line is not the buffer line.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated no that’s the actual wetland.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated that’s the wetlands delineated in accordance with the DEC standards. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it’s a New York State DEC regulated wetland and it’s in the New York City watershed. 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated that could be a problem.

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded we’re aware. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated there will be extensive mitigation requirements for the disturbance within the wetland buffer. The auto dealership would have an oil and water separator, a water quality treatment all designed in accordance with the New York State DEC design manual and then also a referral made to the New York DEP watershed potentially as well for the sighting of any on site sanitary system.

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated also if you look at the note, Chris if you could show that note all the way on the right hand side, keep going down, right there, that. If you could just bring that up I just want to make the board aware of it. The town has a project, as you know, across the street is drainage that comes across 202/Crompond Road onto this property on the lower left hand corner and the East of Hudson project will be providing an area where the water from across the street will cross onto our side of 202 and then if you see where the dotted line is will then be flowing into the wetlands. This will be a project that was being sponsored by the East Side Hudson Authority I believe but is also a part of a project that the Town of Cortlandt is engaging in.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated what Mr. Greenberg is referring to is East of Hudson Corporation is required as part of a participating municipalities to perform phosphorous reduction retrofits within the watershed. This property has been identified as a potential site to construct the storm water best management practice to remove phosphors from the watershed. It hasn’t been approved or designed yet but it will be something that the board could ask cooperation from the current property owner to allow for such a retrofit.

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated and just to answer Mike’s question, we’re aware of it and my client would be very much willing to participate.

Mr. Robert Foley asked does the continuous flow of that wetland, does that go towards the Hunter Brook area over the border in Yorktown?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded yes, it flows north, north east towards the Croton Reservoir ultimately draining into the Croton Reservoir.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked will there be an issue with DOTS or DEP whether this should be paved area or not should this get approved?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded yes, whenever you’re adding impervious area within the DEP watershed there’s a threshold limit in which they require a review. Sighting of the sanitary system is another threshold.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked so there are a lot of conditions that have to be met if this was to take place?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded yes we would outline it in our review memo. We would recommend that the board refer it back for staff to begin a comprehensive review. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and given that DEC and DEP are involved I would declare your intent to be led agent and then we’ll notify them of that.

Mr. Robert Foley stated you will go well beyond the short form of the EAF.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we’ll discuss that in our review memo. They will probably be required to do a long form.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked any other comments from the board members?

Mr. Peter Daly stated Mr. Chairman I move first that we declare ourselves lead agent on this application. 

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Peter Daly stated Mr. Chairman I also move that we refer this back to staff for a review memo.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated thank you.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just for the record you did receive two pieces of correspondence. There was a correspondence from a neighbor and then another piece of correspondence from the applicant. Those were all booked and distributed to the Planning Board and they’re in my office if anyone wants to see them.
PB 2019-8  c.
Application of Ernest Knippenberg for Amended Site Development Plan approval for a proposed 70 ft. by 70 ft. building addition to the existing Hudson Valley Bus Garage located on an approximately 1.28 acre parcel of property at 6 Dogwood Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Site Plan” prepared by Architectural Visions, PLLC dated March 15, 2019 (see prior PB 40-06)

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated good evening again. This project is, for the long time members of this board, I think it goes back to probably about 2010, 2011 in which this project was approved. 
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated 2006 I believe is when it came in. 

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated that’s when my hair wasn’t grey anymore. It goes back that far. As you recall, the basic layout is similar except we ran into a big problem way in the upper where there was a tremendous amount of rock that had to be addressed. Over the years it has been somewhat addressed but now we’ve revised the site plan. Also the proposed addition which is in the upper left hand corner where Chris is showing, that has been downsized slightly and that will be a three bay bus garage right now. Again, to the corner of Highland Avenue and Dogwood Road is the parking for the employees. There’s a tremendous amount of landscaping that we’re going to be adding onto that corner which it needs a lot of landscaping and improvements. There’s also landscaping along Dogwood Road up until the curb cut which allows the buses to come in. There are two curb cuts and obviously parking for the employees. I believe that covers the project so if you have any questions I’ll try to answer them. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so there’s an existing building and you want to add another building?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded right. Chris if you could just show them where the existing building is. That’s the existing building. That’s the addition.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and that’s smaller than the addition that was previously approved by the Planning Board. You approved an entire site plan including a building and the rock removal. Then it took them 15 years to remove the rock and now they’ve come back with a reduced sized building addition.

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated Chris it was one spike of a time. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it took a while.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so right now the landscaping along Dogwood and Highland Avenue appears to be parked buses.

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated well that’s all going to change. Right now everything’s sort of Helter Skelter as you said but everything, as you can see from the site plan of the parking at the corner of the Highland and Dogwood road will be basically employee parking. There’s tremendous amount of landscaping that will be added. We’ve also added landscaping along Dogwood Road which right now is not exactly pristine and I think once this is completed I think it’ll be something that both the applicant and the town can be proud of.

Mr. Michael Preziosi asked the use and purpose of the existing building versus the proposed building, would you like to elaborate?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded yes, basically that’s going to be a bus garage where they’ll prep them up, clean them up. As you know he’s running a business where people hire buses and obviously they have to be cleaned and taken care of.

Mr. Michael Preziosi asked any automotive repair as well or just general maintenance?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded just general maintenance.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi asked general maintenance: oil changes…

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded we’re not going to change transmissions.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated no oil changes or when you say general…

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated obviously after a bus is hired, or rented I should say it’s got to be cleaned up.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated basically cosmetic type of work.

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated yes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we’ll clarify that. We’ll make sure that if they are doing minor things like oil changes that that needs to be…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated if you need major mechanical issues…

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated that will be sent out.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked that will be sent out?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded yes.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated I also just wanted to make clear there was a few violations issued by the DEC and the Department of Health in the past two years pertaining to sanitary flow from the site. This property is connected to the town’s sanitary distribution system. We just want to make clear that there’s absolutely no dumping of any of the bus toilet facilities into the existing manhole on site and that should be noted on the site plan.

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated absolutely.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and there is, I believe, employee parking that goes on there, as you said sort of haphazardly. So either that should be shown as employee parking which I don’t know if it’s possible to be shown as or…

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated the parking for the employees is up in the parking lot to the left of the building, that area over there. It’s calculated based on…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it’s sort of haphazard now. I’m not sure they’re permitted to be parking there to begin with now but they’re correcting that moving forward by not showing them parking there.

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded correct, yes.

Mr. George Kimmerling asked and the bus parking was preapproved? Was that part of the original site plan?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded the actual bus parking, Mr. Knippenberg is in the process of retaining a site development permit to finish the rock cut and to pave that portion of the site. We’ve reviewed it internally for storm water compliance and for some minor site lighting under the previous approval. Everything this board would be reviewing and approving would be the new construction of the 70 x 70 building. 

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated also part of that approval too will include all the employee parking and the landscaping, etc.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and Mike you said something about the solid waste removal from the buses?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded yes it should not be dumped into the local sanitary system. It should be pumped out as approved.

Mr. Robert Foley asked on Mr. Greenberg’s form, #19, is the location on an active or closed solid waste management facility? Is that what you meant?
Mr. Michael Preziosi responded no, that’s something else.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just meaning when you rent a bus and you use the bathroom they have to clean out that.

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated that should not be discharged…

Mr. Robert Foley asked so it’s not adjoining the other county facility?

Mr. Michael Preziosi responded no, not related to that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but I’m curious though. Is that something you should design in the new building, clean out facilities for those buses?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded that’s something we’ll look into. We can talk about that yes.

Mr. Robert Foley stated Chris you’ve got a lot of buses on a small piece of property. I hope that will get resolved. 

Mr. Michael Preziosi stated it’s limited now to the approval…

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated as Mike just said it’s limited to what is shown on the approved site plan.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I hope so. 

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated it’s in the pre-open area so I think it will be observed.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we refer this back.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye". 

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated I have to wish you a post St-Patrick’s Day, Happy Easter and Happy Pass Over.

Mr. Thomas Bianchi stated and the same to you.

*



*



*
ADJOURNMENT

Mr. George Kimmerling stated it’s 9:10 p.m. We’re adjourned now.


*



*



*
Next Meeting: TUESDAY, MAY 7, 2019

I, SYLVIE MADDALENA, a Transcriptionist for the Town of Cortlandt as a subcontractor, do hereby certify that the information provided in this document is an accurate representation of the Planning Board meeting minutes to the best of my ability.
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